
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 
Chief Executive 

Phil Drury 
MCIAT, ACIOB 

 
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 

 

 

 

2 November 2018 
 
TO MEMBERS OF THE AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 
Dear Councillor 
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Audit & Governance Committee on 
Monday, 12th November, 2018 at 6.30 pm 

in the Committee Room, Municipal Buildings, West Street, Boston, PE21 8QR 

 
PHIL DRURY 
Chief Executive 
 
Membership: 
  

Chairman: Councillor Jonathan Noble 
Vice Chairman: Councillor James Edwards 
 Councillors Tom Ashton, Michael Brookes, Colin Brotherton, 

Paul Gleeson, Dr Gordon Gregory, Barrie Pierpoint, 
Felicity Ransome and Mr Alan Pickering 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 
PART I - PRELIMINARIES 
 

A   MINUTES (Pages 1 - 4) 
 

 To sign and confirm the minutes of the last meeting, held on 17th September 2018. 
 

B   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 
 

C   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 

 To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda. 
 

D   PUBLIC QUESTIONS  
 

 To answer any written questions received from members of the public no later than 
5 p.m. two clear working days prior to the meeting. 
 

 
PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 
 

1   ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 2017/18 (Pages 5 - 14) 
 

 (A report by John Cornett, KPMG Director) 
 

2   QUARTER 2 RISK REPORT (Pages 15 - 28) 
 

 (A report presented by Suzanne Rolfe, Transformation & Governance Manager) 
 

3   TREASURY MANAGEMENT AND CAPITAL STRATEGY UPDATE - QUARTER 2 
2018/19 (Pages 29 - 42) 
 

 (A report presented by Colin Wyatt, Accountancy Manager - Treasury & Capital) 
 

4   INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT - NOVEMBER 2018 (Pages 43 - 56) 
 

 (A report by John Scott, Internal Audit Manager) 
 

5   WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 57 - 58) 
 

 (For Members to consider the Committee’s work programme.) 
 

 
Notes: 
 

The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Janette Collier, 
Senior Democratic Services Officer, Municipal Buildings, Boston, 01205 314227    email: 
janette.collier@boston.gov.uk  
 

Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify 01205 314227    
email: janette.collier@boston.gov.uk as soon as possible. 
 

Alternative Versions 
Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format such as larger text, 
Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on direct dial (01205) 
314226 
 

 

Emergency Procedures 
 

In the event of a fire alarm sounding all attendees are asked to leave the building 
via the nearest emergency exit and make their way to the Fire Assembly Point 

located in the car park at the rear of the Municipal Buildings. 

 



 

 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

17 September 2018 

Present: Councillor Jonathan Noble (Chairman), Councillor James Edwards (Vice-
Chairman), Councillors Michael Brookes, Colin Brotherton, Paul Gleeson, 
Barrie Pierpoint, Felicity Ransome and Mr Alan Pickering 
 
Officers –  
Chief Executive, Accountancy Manager Treasury and Capital, Transformation & 
Governance Manager, Audit Director (Mazars), Head of Internal Audit (City of Lincoln 
Council), Principal Auditor (City of Lincoln Council) and Senior Democratic Services 
Officer 
 
19   MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the Committee’s last meeting, held on 23 July 2018, were agreed as a 
correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 
20   APOLOGIES 

 
There were apologies for absence from Councillors Tom Ashton and Gordon Gregory. 
 
21   INTRODUCTION TO NEW EXTERNAL AUDITOR - MAZARS 

 
The Accountancy Manager introduced the Audit Director from Mazars, the Council’s new 
external auditors. 
 
The Audit Director expressed great pleasure at working with the Council and developing 
a successful relationship.  The company had a portfolio of clients across the East 
Midlands and the Council would be served by a dedicated team of local authority 
experts including himself and Jon Machej, the audit manager who would be responsible 
for working with the Council, both of whom had 20 years’ public sector experience.   
 
Responding to questions, the Audit Director advised the Committee that Mazars prided 
itself on being accessible and committed to high quality audit work and excellent client 
services.  It was one of the most experienced firms in public sector work and provided 
tailored services to a high quality with independence and objectivity.   
 
In due course, the Audit Director would take the Committee through the firm’s Audit Plan 
for the Council in detail.  The Audit Director took assurance from the regulator that 
inspected the firm in relation to the quality of its opinions etc.  They would have open 
and constructive discussions with the Committee on future situations and have 
continuous dialogue with officers. 
 
Mazars was one of the top ten audit firms globally and had the right resources, team, 
training and infrastructure to serve the Council well.  The engagement and commitment 
of the audit team would soon become evident.  The team, of which 3-4 staff would serve 
the Council, were based at the firm’s hub in Nottingham.   
 
The Audit Director confirmed that he was responsible for the clients across Lincolnshire, 
which included most of the districts and the County Council. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item A



Audit & Governance Committee 
17 September 2018 
 

 

Action: MS/JC 
Circulate a list of Mazars’ clients across the East Midlands. 

 
The Committee thanked the Audit Director and welcomed him on behalf of the Council. 
 
22   QUARTER 1 RISK REPORT 

 
The Transformation & Governance Manager presented an update on risks for Quarter 1, 
being 1 April to 30 June 2018. 
 
Strategic risks, i.e. those risks which could impact most on the achievements of the 
Council’s corporate priorities as set out in the Corporate Plan, being Prosperity; People; 
Place; Public Service.  There were no new strategic risks to report in Quarter 1. 
 
The Corporate Management Team (CMT) had completed their in-depth review of the 
strategic risks.  The outcome for each risk was set out in Appendix A.  
 
In response to questions, the Transformation & Governance Manager explained that 
actions to monitor the housing risk, which had been increased to high, included 
examining legislation and policies.  Two new systems were being rolled out and a 
watching brief was ongoing to check whether the Council was comfortable with the risk 
or whether to put additional controls in place with action to be taken as appropriate.   
 
A Member suggested that the health risk should be higher than medium due to the 
situation at Pilgrim Hospital.  This would be referred to the lead officer to consider. 
 
The Transformation & Governance Manager confirmed that the housing risk included 
the roll out of the licensing relating to Houses in Multiple Occupation and that the system 
was based on Prince II.  Controls that had been in place for some time needed to be 
reviewed regularly.  Further detail would be provided to Members on various issues as 
requested during debate.  
 

Action: SR 
1. Refer the health risk to Phil Perry as lead officer 
2. Circulate information regarding: 

 The Lincolnshire Resilience Forum risk, particularly relating to pandemic 

 Monitoring arrangements for the housing risk; and 

 The changes to the wording regarding population change made by CMT 

 
23   PROPERTY FUND UPDATE 

 
The Accountancy Manager presented an update on the Council’s property funds. 
 
The amended 2018-19 Treasury and Capital Strategy incorporating £20m purchase of 
capital property Fund holdings was approved at Council in April.  The purpose of the 
report was to update Members on progress to date in acquiring these holdings. 
 
Presentations from 5 fund managers were held in July, with the process being supported 
by the Council’s Treasury Advisors, Link Asset Services.   
 

Page 2



Audit & Governance Committee 
17 September 2018 

 

 

The decision had been taken to place roughly equal amounts with BlackRock, 
Threadneedle, Schroders, M&G and AEW, with transactions taking place when willing 
buyers and sellers could be matched.  Officers’ expectations were that all sums would 
be placed by the end of the calendar year. 
 
So far, funds had been placed with:  

 Schroder’s £4m 

 Threadneedle £3m  
 
Since circulating this report the following funds had also been placed: 

 M&G – £4m settlement date being 14 September     
 
Future trades agreed were: 

 BlackRock – £4m with a settlement date of 28 September    

 Treadneedle - £0.5m with a settlement date of 28 September, and £0.5m with at 
settlement at the end of October. 

 
There had been no movement yet with AEW.   
 
The intention was, ultimately, to finance the holdings from 50 year maturity Public Works 
Loan Board (PWLB) loans.  PWLB rates had been increasing over the past couple of 
weeks, with today’s rate at 2.53%.  The Council’s advisors did expect rates to reduce, if 
only slightly, over the coming weeks.  Officers were monitoring rates on a daily basis 
and would borrow from the PWLB when and if rates became more favourable. 
 
In advance of PWLB Borrowing, to meet the first £11m, officers had used £5m of 
existing cash funds, with temporary borrowing of £2m from South Holland for one month 
at 1% and £4m from Edinburgh City Council for 2 months at 0.83%. 
 
Officers would update the Committee on the acquisition and fund performance as part of 
the half yearly treasury update report in November (showing fund valuations at 30 
September). 
 
In response to questions and comments, the Accountancy Manager confirmed that the 
decision not to borrow immediately was part of the balancing act between forecast 
PWLB rates and the timing of units becoming available.  He had been involved in the 
due diligence process, had met the five fund managers and their representatives, and, 
following the advice of the Council’s advisors, considered that the deals were 
appropriate.  The funds were well balanced with retail and commercial holdings.  The 
interest rate of 0.83% on short-term loans was an annual rate.   
 

Action: CW 
Provide Members with details of the commission charged by Threadneedle and 
BlackRock 

 
A Member commented that, hopefully, the interest rate would decrease and the Council 
could repay its short-term borrowing, but asked whether, if it did decrease, officers 
would take the £20m or risk the rate increasing again. 
 

Page 3



Audit & Governance Committee 
17 September 2018 
 

 

The Accountancy Manager agreed this was a valid point, and consideration on the 
approach would depend on the circumstances and forecasts at that time.   
 
24   INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 

 
The Internal Audit Manager presented the Internal Audit Progress Report for July – 
August 2018, 
 
The 2018/19 Audit Plan was progressing well and was on track. At the end of August 
30% of the Plan had been completed; two audits had been completed with three in 
progress and others being prepared.  No final audits had been issued since the last 
progress report. 
 
In response to questions, the Internal Audit Manager confirmed that more details would 
be provided in the Plan in future.  The review of housing benefit would cover support 
and external subsidy arrangements.   
 
25   WORK PROGRAMME 

 
Members considered the work programme. 
 
It was noted that the mid-year Treasury Management Update would include the figures 
on the capital property fund investments in tabular format.   
 
Members discussed the Committee’s governance role and the work of the Code of 
Conduct Working Group.  It was agreed that the group’s work would be submitted to the 
Committee and an additional meeting could be arranged in order to accommodate it at 
the stage it was ready.   
 

Action: PD 
Draw up a timetable for the submission of the work of the Code of Conduct Working 
Group to be considered at an additional meeting of the Committee if necessary.   

 
 
 
 
 

The Meeting ended at 7.30 pm 
 

Page 4



Annual Audit 
Letter 2017/18

Boston Borough Council 

August 2018

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



Summary for 
Audit & 
Governance 
Committee

Section one

Page 6



© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. 2

Summary for Audit & Governance Committee

Audit opinion

We issued an unqualified opinion on the Authority’s financial statements on 31 July 2018. This means that 
we believe the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority and of 
its expenditure and income for the year.

Financial statements audit

Our audit procedures are designed to identify misstatements which are material to our opinion on the 
financial statements as a whole. Materiality for the Authority’s accounts was set at £800,000 which equates 
to around 1.8% of gross expenditure. We design our procedures to detect errors in specific accounts at a 
lower level of precision. 

We report to the Audit & Goverance Committee any misstatements of lesser amounts, other than those that 
are “clearly trivial”, to the extent that these are identified by our audit work. In the context of the Authority, 
an individual difference is considered to be clearly trivial if it is less than £40,000.

We did not identify any material misstatements, there were no adjusted misstatements and there were no 
unadjusted misstatements during our audit that we are required to report to you.

The working papers provided this year have been of a good standard and were available at the start of the 
audit visit. The Finance team responded promptly to any requests for additional information or explanation 
and were available throughout the audit visit. We thank the Finance team for their co-operation throughout 
the visit which allowed the audit to progress within the allocated timeframe.

Our audit work was designed to specifically address the following significant risks:

• Management Override of Controls – Our audit methodology incorporates the risk of management 
override as a default significant risk. We did not identify any specific additional risks of management 
override relating to the audit.

• Valuation of PPE – The Authority has adopted a rolling revaluation model which sees all land and 
buildings revalued over a five year cycle. This creates a risk that the carrying value of those assets not 
revalued in year differs materially from the year end fair value.

• Pensions Liabilities – The net pension liability represents a material element of the Authority’s balance 
sheet. There is a risk that the assumptions and methodology used in the actuarial valuation of the 
Authority’s pension obligation are not reasonable which could have a material impact on the net pension 
liability accounted for in the financial statements.

• Faster Close– The bringing forward of the national year-end timetable represented a risk to the 
completion of the audit by the 31 July deadline.

We did not identify any evidence of material misstatement as a result of our audit work on these significant 
risk areas.

This Annual Audit Letter summarises the outcome from our audit work at Boston Borough Council 
(“the Authority”) in relation to the 2017-18 audit year.

Although it is addressed to Members of the Authority, it is also intended to communicate these key 
messages to key external stakeholders, including members of the public, and will be placed on the 
Authority’s website.

This is KPMG’s last Annual Audit Letter to the Authority. We would like to take this opportunity to 
thank the Authority’s officers and the members of the Audit & Governance Committee for their 
support throughout the six years of our audit appointment.

Section one:

Page 7



© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. 3

Summary for Audit & Governance Committee 
(cont.)
Other information accompanying the financial statements

Whilst not explicitly covered by our audit opinion, we review other information that accompanies the financial 
statements to consider its material consistency with the audited accounts. This year we reviewed the Annual 
Governance Statement and Narrative Report. We concluded that they were consistent with our 
understanding and did not identify any significant issues.

Whole of Government Accounts

The Authority prepares a consolidation pack to support the production of Whole of Government Accounts by 
HM Treasury. We are not required to review your pack in detail as the Authority falls below the threshold 
where an audit is required. As required by the guidance we have confirmed this with the National Audit 
Office. 

Value for Money conclusion

We issued an unqualified conclusion on the Authority’s arrangements to secure value for money (VFM 
conclusion) for 2017-18 on 31 July 2018. This means we are satisfied that during the year the Authority had 
appropriate arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of its resources. To 
arrive at our conclusion we looked at the Authority’s arrangements to make informed decision making, 
sustainable resource deployment and working with partners and third parties.

Value for Money risk areas

We undertook a risk assessment as part of our VFM audit work to identify the key areas impacting on our 
VFM conclusion and considered the arrangements you have put in place to mitigate these risks. Our work 
identified the following significant risks:

• Financial Resilience - As a result of reductions in central government funding, and other pressures, the 
Authority continues to face similar financial pressures and uncertainties to those experienced by others in 
the local government sector. The Authority needs to have effective arrangements in place for managing 
its annual budget, generating income and identifying and implementing any savings required to balance its 
medium term financial plan. As part of our additional risk based work, we reviewed the arrangements the 
Authority has in place to ensure continued financial resilience.

We were satisfied that there were adequate arrangements in place during 2017-18 and there were no 
significant matters relating to these risk areas which prevented us from giving an unqualified VFM 
conclusion.

High priority recommendations

We raised no high priority recommendations as a result of our 2017-18 work.

Certificate

We issued our certificate on 31 July 2018. The certificate confirms that we have concluded the audit for 
2017-18 in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit & Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of 
Audit Practice.

Section one:

Page 8



© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. 4

Summary for Audit & Governance Committee
(cont.)
Audit fee

The scale fee set by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited (PSAA) for the 2017-18 audit is £44,105 plus 
VAT. We have raised one additional fee in 2017-18 for £1,995 plus VAT in respect of additional work we were 
required to do this year on the re-stated figures in relation to the long term investment and change of 
accounting treatment. The additional fee has been agreed with the s151 Officer and is subject to approval by 
PSAA. The PSAA scale fee for 2016-17 was £44,105 plus VAT.

Further detail is contained in Appendix 2.

Exercising of audit powers

We have a duty to consider whether to issue a report in the public interest about something we believe the 
Authority should consider, or the public should know about.

We have not identified any matters that would require us to issue a public interest report.

In addition, we have not had to exercise any other audit powers under the Local Audit & Accountability Act 
2014.

Section one:

Page 9



Appendices

Page 10



© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. 6

This appendix summarises the reports we issued since our last Annual Audit 
Letter. 2018

January

October

September

August

July

June

May

April

March

February

Certification of Grants and Returns 

This report summarised the outcome of our certification work on the 
Authority’s 2016-17 grants and returns.

External Audit Plan

The External Audit Plan set out our approach to the audit of the Authority’s 
financial statements and to support the VFM conclusion. 

Report to Those Charged with Governance 

The Report to Those Charged with Governance summarised the results of 
our audit work for 2017-18 including key issues and recommendations 
raised as a result of our observations.

We also provided the mandatory declarations required under auditing 
standards as part of this report.

Auditor’s Report 

The Auditor’s Report included our audit opinion on the financial statements 
along with our VFM conclusion and our certificate.

Annual Audit Letter

This Annual Audit Letter provides a summary of the results of our audit for 
2017-18.

Summary of reports issued
Appendix 1:

Page 11



© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. 7

External audit

The scale fee set by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited (PSAA) for the 2017-18 audit is £44,105 plus 
VAT. We have raised one additional fee in 2017-18 for £1,995 plus VAT in respect of additional work we were 
required to do this year on the re-stated figures in relation to the long term investment and change of 
accounting treatment. This additional fee has been agreed with the s151 Officer and is subject to approval by 
PSAA. The PSAA scale fee for 2016-17 was £44,105 plus VAT. 

Certification of grants and returns

Under our terms of engagement with PSAA we undertake prescribed work in order to certify the Authority’s 
2017-18 housing benefit grant claim. This certification work is still ongoing, and the certification deadline is 
30 November 2018. The PSAA scale fee for this work is £9,767 and the final fee will be confirmed through 
our reporting on the outcome of that work in January 2019. 

Other services

We did not charge any additional fees for other services. 

This appendix provides information on our final fees for the 2017-18 audit.

External audit fees 2016/17 (£’000)

Audit fee Pension 
Fund 

audit fee

Audit-
related 
services 

Non-audit 
work

Planned 2017-18 Fees

Audit fees
Appendix 2:

Page 12



This report is addressed to the Authority and has been prepared for the sole use of the Authority. We 
take no responsibility to any member of staff acting in their individual capacities, or to third parties. We 
draw your attention to the Statement of Responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies, which is 
available on Public Sector Audit Appointment’s website (www.psaa.co.uk).

External auditors do not act as a substitute for the audited body’s own responsibility for putting in place 
proper arrangements to ensure that public business is conducted in accordance with the law and 
proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used 
economically, efficiently and effectively.

We are committed to providing you with a high quality service. If you have any concerns or are 
dissatisfied with any part of KPMG’s work, in the first instance you should contact John Cornett, the 
engagement lead to the Authority, who will try to resolve your complaint. If you are dissatisfied with 
your response please contact the national lead partner for all of KPMG’s work under our contract with 
Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited, Andrew Sayers, by email to Andrew.Sayers@kpmg.co.uk. 
After this, if you are still dissatisfied with how your complaint has been handled you can access PSAA’s 
complaints procedure by emailing generalenquiries@psaa.co.uk by telephoning 020 7072 7445 or by 
writing to Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited, 3rd Floor, Local Government House, Smith 
Square, London, SW1P 3HZ.

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of 
independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International. 

CREATE: CRT086281A

kpmg.com/uk

The key contacts in relation to our audit are:

John Cornett
Director

T: 0746 8 749927
E: john.cornett@kpmg.co.uk

Debbie Stokes
Manager

T: 07551 13 5715
E: debbie.stokes@kpmg.co.uk

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

DATE: 12 NOVEMBER 2018 

SUBJECT: QUARTER 2 RISK REPORT 

REPORT AUTHOR: HEAD OF CORPORATE SERVICES 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 
 

SUMMARY 

 

Update on risks in Quarter 2 

 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

That Committee comment on the Quarter 2 risk information if required and consider the 
future plans in section 3. 

 

 
 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

The Audit & Governance Committee is responsible for monitoring the effective 
development and operation of risk management in the Council according to its terms of 
reference 

 

 
 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 

 

Alternative reporting arrangements 

 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 2



REPORT 

 
1. Update on risks in Quarter 2 

1.1 Each quarter we monitor our strategic risks – those risks which could impact most 
on the achievement of our corporate priorities as set out in the Corporate Plan 
(www.boston.gov.uk/corporateplan) – Prosperity; People; Place; Public Service. 

 
1.2 There are no new strategic risks to report in Quarter 2. 
 
1.3 Corporate Management Team (CMT) have completed their in-depth review of the 

strategic risks and the outcome was reported in Quarter 1. 
 
1.4 Summary of strategic risks (full details in Appendix A) 

 

Corporate 
Priority 

Risk name Risk owner Risk score Risk rating 
Management 

assurance 
(RAG) 

1: Prosperity 

Flood risk 
Michelle 
Sacks 

8 Medium Amber 

Growth and 
local economy 

Michelle 
Sacks 

9 Medium Green 

Local Plan 
Michelle 
Sacks 

6 Medium Amber 

2: People 

Housing Andy Fisher 12 High Red 

Welfare Paul Julian 4 Medium Green 

Health Phil Perry 6 Medium Green 

3: Place Town Centre Phil Perry 6 Medium Green 

4: Public 
Service 

Population 
change 

Andy Fisher 9 Medium Green 

Budget Paul Julian 12 High Amber 

Capacity 
Katharine 
Nundy 

6 Medium Green 

Transformation 
Programme 

Paul Julian 9 Medium Amber 

Brexit Paul Julian 9 Medium Green 

Overall 

Civil 
contingency 
risks 

Andy Fisher 8 Medium Green 

Compliance 
Michelle 
Sacks 

6 Medium Green 

Reputation 
Katharine 
Nundy 

6 Medium Green 

 
2. Response to questions raised in Quarter 1 

2.1 Lincolnshire Resilience Forum (LRF) 
 
2.2 The LRF have a series of plans that deal with major incidents including flooding, 

pandemic outbreaks, mass fatality etc.  Pandemic Flu has been identified as 
Lincolnshire’s number one risk for 2018. There is more information on their website 
at https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/lincolnshire-prepared/risks  

 

Page 16

http://www.boston.gov.uk/corporateplan
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/lincolnshire-prepared/risks


2.2 Specifically the LRF has an adopted Pandemic Influenza Plan. The plan clearly sets 
out its scope and interdependencies with other plans created and adopted by the 
LRF. This is a secure document but can be shared on request to Andy Fisher. 
Pandemic flu has been elevated above both inland flooding and coastal flooding 
due to the relative likelihood and impact. 

 
2.3 Housing 
 
2.4 The impact of the recent changes to housing requirements is being monitored by 

the District Housing Network and the Greater Lincolnshire Affordable Housing 
Group. There are local meetings with developers and partners. The HMO licensing 
caseload is being monitored with fortnightly team meetings. Presentations on HMO 
licensing have been made to Members and the Landlords Forum. There is a report 
to the Corporate & Community Committee planned in December 2018. A Growth 
Manager has been appointed to support housing delivery. 

 
2.5 Population change wording 
 

2.6 Risk description: There is a risk that population change could have a detrimental 
impact on the Council’s Corporate Plan priorities around People and Prosperity 

 
2.7 Negative risk: There is a risk that the community makeup in Boston continues to 

change because of the ongoing uncertainties around Brexit.  There is growing 
evidence that some longer established A8 workers are leaving the local 
employment market with newer A2 arrival communities taking their place.  Churn 
within the general population and the labour market can have impacts on and within 
communities and can affect business confidence. As the population changes and 
newer communities arrive, exploitation in both employment and housing sectors 
could increase.  

 
2.8 Opportunity risk: There is opportunity to support and encourage good community 

relations and maximise the wider benefits of change, especially in light of the 
Migration Impact Funding the Council and Partners have secured. 

 
3. Future plans 

 
3.1 The focus will now move to an in-depth review of the operational risks as part of 

service planning for 2019/20. This will be carried out in Quarter 3 and reported to 
this Committee in Quarter 4. 

 
3.2 Committee may wish to identify a specific aspect of risk management to focus on in 

Quarter 3 reporting, for example, risk appetite. The Risk Management Framework is 
available online at www.boston.gov.uk/risk for background and is due for review in 
Quarter 1 next year. 

 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
Strategic and operational risks continue to be managed in accordance with the Risk 
Management Framework. 
 

Page 17

http://www.boston.gov.uk/risk


 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no financial implications specific to this report. 
 

 

 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

 Local Government Act 1999 

 Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 

 Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework 2016 
 

 

 
ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 
 

 
CONSULTATION 

 

Consultation has been undertaken with CMT. 

 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the production of this report 
 
 

Page 18



Appendix A 

 
 

Risk Q2 2018/19 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 
(monitored in 
P+) 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

C
P

1
 

Flood risk 

The risk of 
flooding may 
adversely 
impact on the 
Council's ability 
to achieve its 
corporate 
priority of 
prosperity 

MS 

Strategic Flood 
Risk Assessment; 
Lincolnshire 
Flood Risk 
Strategy; 
working closely 
with the 
Environment 
Agency; joint 
working with LCC 
and South 
Holland on the 
Local Plan; plans 
for the Boston 
Barrier (which 
will reduce risk 
of tidal flooding 
from 2% to 
0.3%); 
Lincolnshire 
Resilience Forum 

2 
Possible 

4 
Critical 
impact 

8 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
work with 
partners to 
manage flood 
risk and its 
impact; deliver 
the Local Plan; 
the risk score 
will only reduce 
when the 
Boston Barrier 
is in place 

Submission of 
the Local Plan 

N/A 

Amber; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 
20/12/17; no 
changes 
recommended 

C
P

1
 

Growth and 
local economy 

Growth is vital 
to the future 
ability of the 
Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority of 
prosperity 

MS 

Proactive 
approach to 
growth; 
economic 
development 
plan 

3 
Probable 

3 
Major 
impact 

9 
Medium 

risk 
Treat 

Implementation 
of the Economic 
Development 
Plan 

Aim to reduce 
the likelihood 
of lack of 
growth to 
possible due 
to ED Plan 

Green; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 
6/12/17; no 
changes 
recommended 

P
age 19



Appendix A 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 
(monitored in 
P+) 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

C
P

1
 

Local Plan 

Lack of delivery 
on the Local 
Plan will have 
an impact on 
the ability of 
the Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority of 
prosperity 

MS 

Local Plan 
delivery plan; 
plans for a local 
plan board to 
oversee actions 
post-adoption 

2 
Possible 

3 
Major 
impact 

6 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
work on 
delivering the 
Local Plan on 
schedule 

Adoption of the 
Local Plan 

N/A 

Amber; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 27/6/18 
– changes to 
wording only 

C
P

2
 

Housing 

Lack of housing 
delivery, across 
tenures that 
means that the 
range of 
housing needs 
that exist 
within the 
Borough 
cannot be met. 
 
A lack of 
delivery will 
have 
overarching 
negative 
impacts that 
affect the 
economy, 
business 
confidence and 
the ability of 
the Council to 
achieve its 

AF 

Development of 
a new Local Plan. 
Delivery of 
Housing Strategy 
Actions. 
Developing 
Transformation 
Programme to 
focus on wider 
housing enabling 
and housing 
delivery. 
 

4 
Almost 
certain 

3 
Major 
impact 

12 
High risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
work with 
partners to 
drive the 
delivery of new 
Housing  

Submission of 
local plan.  
Monitoring of 
total housing 
delivery.  
Monitoring of 
affordable 
housing delivery. 

N/A 

Red; Reviewed 
and updated by 
CMT on 
24/1/18; 
increased from 
medium to high 
risk 

P
age 20



Appendix A 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 
(monitored in 
P+) 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

corporate 
priority to 
support and 
protect 
vulnerable 
people and 
meet the wider 
housing needs 
of the 
community;  

C
P

2
 

Welfare 

There is a risk 
that ‘universal 
support – 
delivered 
locally’ will 
impact on the 
ability of the 
Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority to 
support and 
protect 
vulnerable 
people 

PJ 

'Universal 
support - 
delivered locally' 
project work 
underway with 
partners to 
ensure support 
and training is in 
place for staff 
and local people 

2 
Possible 

2 
Minor 
impact 

4 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
work on the 
'universal 
support - 
delivered 
locally' project 
with partners 

Monitor impact 
of universal 
credit 

N/A 

Green; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 16/5/18 
– no changes at 
this time – to be 
reviewed again 
post Universal 
Credit roll out in 
September 
2018 

P
age 21



Appendix A 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 
(monitored in 
P+) 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

C
P

2
 

Health 

There is a risk 
that health 
issues will 
impact on the 
ability of the 
Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority to 
support and 
protect people; 
long term 
health issues, 
deprivation, 
local 
perceptions, 
apathy, 
unsustainable 
health services 

PP 
Partnership 
working with 
health 

3 
Probable 

2 
Minor 
impact 

6 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
work with 
partners to 
deliver the 
Boston Health 
& Wellbeing 
Strategy and 
Action Plan 

Partnership 
work on the 
Boston Health & 
Wellbeing 
Strategy and 
Action Plan 

N/A 

Green; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 18/4/18 
– changes to 
wording only 

C
P

3
 

Town centre 

The future 
sustainability of 
the town 
centre in terms 
of retail, 
housing and car 
parking will 
have an impact 
on the ability of 
the Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
prosperity and 
place priority 

PP 

Prosperous 
Boston and 
Markets task and 
finish groups 

2 
Possible 

3 
Major 
impact 

6 
Medium 

risk 
Treat 

Prosperous 
Boston and 
Markets task 
and finish 
groups 

Aim to reduce 
the likelihood 
of the town 
centre 
deteriorating 
to possible 
and to take all 
available 
opportunities 
to reshape a 
vibrant town 
centre 

Green; 
Reviewed and 
updated by CMT 
on 10/1/18; risk 
score reduced 
from 9 to 6 – 
still medium 

P
age 22



Appendix A 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 
(monitored in 
P+) 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

C
P

4
 Population 

change 

There is a risk 
that population 
change will 
impact on the 
ability of the 
Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priorities of 
people & 
prosperity 

AF 

Inclusive Boston 
projects; 
Controlling 
Migration Fund 

3 Probable 
3 

Major 
impact 

9 
Medium 

risk 
 Treat 

 Inclusive Boston 
projects – 
progress 
monitored in 
quarterly 
reporting 

N/A 

Green; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 2/5/18 
and 13/6/18; 
wording 
changed and 
likelihood 
increased to 3 

C
P

4
 

Budget 

There is a risk 
around the 
long term 
balancing of 
the budget 
with economic 
and funding 
uncertainty 
impacting on 
the ability of 
the Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority of 
public service 

PJ 

Medium Term 
Financial 
Strategy; 
budgetary 
process; sound 
level of reserves; 
continued close 
monitoring; 
refresh of 
transformation 
programme; 
maintenance of 
the value list 

3 
Probable 

4 
Critical 
impact 

12 
High risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
have a robust 
budget setting 
and MTFP 
process in 
place; continue 
to drive the 
delivery of the 
refreshed 
transformation 
programme; be 
less risk averse 
when making 
decisions about 
transformation 

Delivery of 
MTFP; quarterly 
reporting; 
implementation 
of the 
transformation 
programme 

N/A 

Amber; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 
18/10/17; no 
changes 
recommended; 
specific wording 
added in 
relation to 
Internal 
Drainage Board 
(IDB) risk in Q4 

P
age 23



Appendix A 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 
(monitored in 
P+) 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

C
P

4
 

Capacity 

There is a risk 
that capacity 
will impact on 
the ability of 
the Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority of 
public service 

KN 

Recruitment and 
retention project 
completed; 
succession 
planning 
ongoing; HR 
policies and 
procedures; 
good 
management 
practice; 
member training 
and 
development; 
there is capacity 
in priority areas 

2 
Possible 

3 
Major 
impact 

6 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
train and 
develop staff 
and members 
and maximise 
resources by 
prioritising and 
shared services 

Workforce 
planning; 
succession 
planning 

N/A 

Green; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 
01/11/17 – no 
changes 
recommended 

C
P

4
 

Transformation 
Programme 

There is a risk 
that the next 
phase of the 
transformation 
programme will 
impact on the 
ability of the 
Council to 
deliver public 
service 

PJ 

Transformation 
Programme; 
project 
management 
methodology; 
governance in 
place via 
Transformation 
Board and 
quarterly 
reporting 

3 
Probable 

3 
Major 
impact 

9 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
drive the 
delivery of the 
transformation 
programme 

Delivery of the 
transformation 
programme; 
review of the 
project 
management 
guidelines 

N/A 

Amber; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 
11/07/18 – 
likelihood score 
increased to 3 

C
P

4
 

Brexit 

The outcome of 
the referendum 
has resulted in 
economic 
uncertainty and 
there may be 
other changes 

PJ 

Medium Term 
Financial 
Strategy; 
budgetary 
process; sound 
level of reserves; 
continued close 

3 
Probable 

3 
Major 
impact 

9 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
have robust 
financial plans 
and monitoring 
in place 
pending more 

Quarterly 
financial 
reporting 

N/A 

Green; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 
15/11/17 – no 
changes 
recommended 

P
age 24



Appendix A 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 
(monitored in 
P+) 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

around 
migration, the 
local 
workforce, and 
the legal 
framework in 
which we 
operate that 
are also 
uncertain at 
this time 

monitoring clarity 

O
ve

ra
ll Civil 

contingency 
risks 

There are 
community 
risks which will 
impact on the 
ability of the 
Council to 
operate 
effectively 

AF 

Community Risk 
Register 
monitored by 
the Lincolnshire 
Resilience Forum 
(LRF) 

2 
Possible 

4 
Critical 
impact 

8 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
work with the 
LRF 

Working in 
partnership with 
the Lincolnshire 
Resilience 
Forum 

N/A 

Green; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 7/02/18 
– changes to 
wording only 

P
age 25



Appendix A 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 
(monitored in 
P+) 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

O
ve

ra
ll 

Compliance 

There is a risk 
that non-
compliance 
with legal 
requirements / 
governance / 
internal 
controls will 
impact on the 
ability of the 
Council to 
operate 
effectively 

MS 

Internal controls, 
policies and 
procedures in 
place; annual 
governance 
statement; 
internal audit; 
safeguarding 
policy and 
procedures; 
ongoing work to 
improve contract 
management 
and to update 
the contract 
register; 
Member training 
programme and 
corporate 
training 
programme in 
place; revised 
scheme of 
delegation; 
effective 
complaints 
management 
process 

2 
Possible 

3 
Major 
impact 

6 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
ensure 
compliance 
with legal 
requirements, 
governance 
and internal 
controls; 
improve 
contract 
register 

Internal audit 
reporting; 
review of 
contract 
register; 
Member Code of 
Conduct to be 
finalised and 
adopted; 
procurement 
training 

N/A 

Green; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 
30/05/18 – 
changes to 
wording only 

P
age 26



Appendix A 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 
(monitored in 
P+) 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

O
ve

ra
ll 

Reputation 

There is a 
reputational 
risk to the 
Council which 
could impact 
on the ability of 
the Council to 
operate 
effectively 

KN 

Internal and 
external 
communication, 
press releases, 
bulletins, 
website, social 
media; policy, 
protocol and 
training for 
speaking to the 
press 

2 
Possible 

3 
Major 
impact 

6 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
communicate 
effectively and 
work with the 
press to 
portray the 
Council 
accurately 

Production of 
press releases, 
bulletins; use of 
social media; 
development of 
Visit Boston, 
Think Boston 
etc; work with 
the Youth 
Council 

N/A 

Green; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 
21/02/2018 – 
changes to 
wording only 

 

Guidance on scoring for information 
 
Risk appetite categories: 
 

 
 

P
age 27



Appendix A 

 
 

 
 

P
age 28



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

DATE: 12 NOVEMBER 2018 

SUBJECT: TREASURY MANAGEMENT AND CAPITAL 
STRATEGY UPDATE – QUARTER 2 2018/19 

REPORT AUTHOR: CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

 

SUMMARY 
 
The Council fully complies with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy Code of Practice on Treasury Management (2017). This report 
sets out the Treasury Management and relevant capital strategy activities of 
the Council for the period 1 April to 30 September 2018. 
 
In terms of investment returns the Council is now expecting to significantly 
overachieve the initial budget estimate of £117,000 in 2018/19, which did not 
include returns from additional capital Property Fund purchases. The Council 
is generally keeping cash investments short term, although it has temporarily 
utilised some monies in longer term property funds.  As the financial climate 
changes, who we invest with, and the amount invested, is under constant 
scrutiny, taking into account risk at any particular moment in time. 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That members note the Treasury Management and Capital Strategy update 
position as at 30 September 2018. 
 
 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
To effectively manage Treasury risk and protect Council capital. 
 
 
 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 
There are no alternative recommendations. 
 
 

 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 29

Agenda Item 3



REASON FOR REPORT 
 
To report the Council’s Treasury Management performance in 2018/19 and in 
compliance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s 
(CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury Management 2017 and generally 
accepted best practice. 
 
Main Report: 
 
1. Introduction 

 
1.1 The CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management recommends 

that members be updated on treasury management activities regularly 
(annual, mid-year and/or quarterly reports). This report, therefore, 
ensures this Council is implementing best practice in accordance with 
the Code. 

 
1.2 This report sets out Treasury Management and relevant capital 

strategy performance up to 30 September 2018, and looks ahead to 
the remainder of the year. 

 
1.3 The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2018/19, 

approved by Council in February 2018, incorporates the Council’s 
Annual Investment Strategy, which outlines the Council’s investment 
priorities as follows, ranked in order of importance: 

 
 Security of capital; 
 Liquidity; and 
 Yield 

 
1.4 Following the publication of revised guidance, the Strategy Statement 

was subsequently updated and approved by Council on 30 April 2018 
making provision for commercially focused capital expenditure on 
property funds and the undertaking of borrowing to finance their 
acquisition. 

 
1.5 The Council also aims to achieve the optimum return (yield) on its 

investments commensurate with proper levels of security and liquidity.  
In the current economic climate it is considered appropriate to keep the 
majority of investments short term to cover cash flow needs, but also to 
seek out value available in periods up to 12 months with highly credit 
rated financial institutions, using its advisors’ (Link Asset Services) 
suggested creditworthiness approach, including a minimum sovereign 
credit rating and Credit Default Swap (CDS) overlay information. 

 
1.6 The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) sets Prudential 

and Treasury Indicators which are relevant for the purposes of setting 
an integrated Treasury Management Strategy and are a requirement of 
the CIPFA Code of Practice in Treasury Management. 

 
 
 

Page 30



 
2.  Economic Background 
 
2.1  UK. The first half of 2018/19 saw UK economic growth post a modest 

performance, but sufficiently robust for the Monetary Policy Committee, 
(MPC) to vote to increase the Bank Rate on 2 August from 0.5% to 
0.75%.  Although growth looks as if it will only be modest at around 
1.5% in 2018, the Bank of England’s August Quarterly Inflation Report 
forecast that growth will pick up to 1.8% in 2019, albeit with several 
caveats – mainly related to whether or not the UK achieves an orderly 
withdrawal from the European Union in March 2019. 
   

Some MPC members expressed concerns about a build-up of 
inflationary pressures, particularly with the pound continuing to fall in 
value against both the US dollar and the Euro.  The Consumer Price 
Index (CPI) measure of inflation rose unexpectedly from 2.4% in June 
to 2.7% in August due to increases in volatile components, but is 
expected to fall back to the 2% inflation target over the next two years 
given a scenario of minimal increases in Bank Rate.  The MPC has 
indicated Bank Rate would need to be in the region of 1.5% by March 
2021 for inflation to stay on track.  Financial markets are currently 
pricing in the next increase in Bank Rate for the second half of 2019. 
 

Unemployment has continued at a 43 year low of 4% on the 
Independent Labour Organisation measure.  A combination of job 
vacancies hitting an all-time high in July, together with negligible 
growth in total employment numbers, indicates that employers are 
having major difficulties filling job vacancies with suitable staff.  It was 
therefore unsurprising that wage inflation picked up to 2.9% (3 month 
average regular pay, excluding bonuses), and to a one month figure in 
July of 3.1%.  This meant that in real terms, (i.e. wage rates higher 
than CPI inflation), earnings grew by about 0.4%, near to the joint high 
of 0.5% since 2009.   
 
In the political arena, there is a risk that the current Conservative 
minority government may be unable to muster a majority in the 
Commons over Brexit.  However, our advisors’ central position is that 
the government will endure, despite various setbacks, along the route 
to Brexit in March 2019.  If, however, the UK faces a general election in 
the next 12 months, this could result in a potential loosening of 
monetary policy and therefore medium to longer dated gilt yields could 
rise on the expectation of a weak pound and concerns around inflation 
picking up. 
 

2.2 EUROZONE.  Growth was unchanged at 0.4% in quarter 2, but 
undershot earlier forecasts for a stronger economic performance in 
2018. In particular, data from Germany has been mixed and it could be 
negatively impacted by US tariffs on a significant part of manufacturing 
exports, e.g. cars.   For that reason, although growth is still expected to 
be in the region of 2% for 2018, the horizon is less clear than it seemed 
just a short while ago.  

Page 31



 
2.3 USA.  President Trump’s massive easing of fiscal policy is fuelling a 

(temporary) boost in consumption which has generated an upturn in 
the rate of strong growth which rose from 2.2%, (annualised rate), in 
quarter 1 to 4.2% in quarter 2, but also an upturn in inflationary 
pressures.  With inflation moving towards 3%, the Fed increased rates 
another 0.25% in September to 2.25%, this being the fourth increase in 
2018, and indicated they expected to increase rates four more times by 
the end of 2019.   The dilemma, however, is what to do when the 
temporary boost to consumption wanes, particularly as the recent 
imposition of tariffs on a number of countries’ exports to the US (China 
in particular) could see a switch to US production of some of those 
goods, but at higher prices.  Such a scenario would invariably make 
any easing of monetary policy harder for the Fed in the second half of 
2019. 
 

3. Interest Rate Forecast 
 
3.1 The Council’s treasury advisor (Link Asset Services) has provided the 

following forecast: 

 
 
3.2 The flow of generally positive economic statistics after the end of the 

first quarter of 2018/19 meant that it came as no surprise that the MPC 
came to a decision on 2 August to make the first increase in Bank Rate 
above 0.5% since the financial crash, to 0.75%.  However, the MPC 
emphasised again that future Bank Rate increases would be gradual 
and would rise to a much lower equilibrium rate (where monetary policy 
is neither expansionary of contractionary) than before the crash; indeed 
they gave a figure for this of around 2.5% in ten years’ time but 
declined to give a medium term forecast.  It is considered unlikely that 
the MPC will increase Bank Rate before February 2019, ahead of the 
deadline in March for Brexit.  The advisors also feel that the MPC is 
more likely to wait until August 2019, before the next increase, to be 
followed by further increases of 0.25% in May and November 2020 to 
reach 1.5%. However, the cautious pace of even these limited 
increases is dependent on a reasonably orderly Brexit. 

 
 
 

Page 32



 
3.3 The overall balance of risks to economic growth in the UK is probably 

neutral. The balance of risks to increases in Bank Rate and shorter 
term PWLB rates are probably also even and are broadly dependent 
on how strong GDP growth turns out, how slowly inflation pressures 
subside, and how quickly the Brexit negotiations move forward 
positively.  

 
4.  Investment Income  
 
4.1 The Base Rate informs the rates that can be obtained from 

investments and the increase in August 2018 from 0.50% to 0.75% has 
increased expected returns slightly.  
 

4.2 The Council budgeted to receive £117,000 in investment income in 
2018/19 comprising £80,000 from cash investments and £37,000 from 
Property Funds. This estimate excluded any returns from new property 
fund expenditure, approved by Council on 30 April 2018. 
 
Investment income earned to 30 September 2018 totalled £83,300, 
made up of £44,100 from cash investments and £39,200 from Property 
Funds. A significant uplift in property fund income will occur in the 
second half of this year following purchases at the end of August and 
September totalling £15.489m.   
 
Investment income for 2018/19 is now expected to achieve £462,000 
comprising £87,000 from cash investments and £375,000 from 
Property Funds. As previously reported, it is proposed that any 
investment returns above the costs of borrowing are initially placed in a 
reserve to mitigate the risks of future reductions in the funds’ capital 
value. 
 
Cumulatively in 2018/19, to quarter 2 the Council achieved an average 
of 0.61% from cash investments and 3.06% from Property Funds.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 33



 
Exhibit 1 – Investment Income Projection 

 

 
 
4.3 The average interest rates achieved so far on the Council’s cash 

investments are shown in Table 2 below. The table shows that overall 
performance generally compares favourably to the benchmark rates. 

 
Table 2 – Benchmarked rates of return 

 

Benchmark Benchmark Return Council Performance 

7 day  0.44% 
No investments of this type 

held 

1 month 0.47% 0.54% 

3 month  0.61% 0.73% 

6 month  0.71% 0.62% 

12 month  0.94% 0.94% 

 
4.4 Table 3 highlights the level of investment activity and the rates 

obtained as at 30 September 2018. Investments are made in line with 
both Link’s creditworthiness guidance and the duration limits applied to 
each colour banding.   

 
 
 
 

 £462,000  

 £117,000  

 £83,300  

£0 

£50,000 

£100,000 

£150,000 

£200,000 

£250,000 

£300,000 

£350,000 

£400,000 

£450,000 

£500,000 

Apr May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar 

Month 

Actual, Budget , and Projected Investment Income  

Projected Outturn 

Budget 

Actual 

In
te

re
st

 r
ec

ei
va

b
le

 

Page 34



4.5 The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy states investments are 
limited with any one institution to no more than £3m invested per 
institution, and £5m per counterparty ‘group’. On 8 working days 
residual balances in excess of the £5m limit were deposited in the 
Council’s current bank account (HSBC) for cash flow reasons (in 
accordance with para 7.3 of the Treasury Management Strategy). 

 
Table 3 – Counterparty list and Investments held at 30 September 2018 
 

Institutions 
with Cash held 

Amount  
£’000 

Duration Rate 
Most recent Link 
Asset Services 
Colour Rating 

HSBC 5,350 Call 0.43% Orange (12 
months) 

Santander 3,000 95 day notice 0.85% Red – 6 months 

Barclays 2,000 95 day notice 0.95% Red – 6 months 

Lloyds 1,000 6 months 0.65% Orange (12 
months) 750 1 year 0.90% 

750 1 year 1.05% 

250 1 year 1.00% 

Bank of 
Scotland 

 
1,000 

 
1 year 

 
0.85% 

Orange (12 
months) 

Total 14,100    

 
4.6 As Table 3 indicates, the rates achieved vary between different 

institutions, for different durations which are decided using the colour 
rating at the point when the investment was made.  

 
4.7 The average level of funds available for investment from 1 April to 30 

September 2018 was £15.5m. Of this, an average of £6.0m was 
available on a temporary basis, its level being dependent on the timing 
of precept and business rate pool payments, the receipt of grants and 
progress on the capital programme.  

 
5 Capital Strategy and Property Funds 
 
5.1 As previously reported, the council invested £1m in three property 

funds.  Details of these schemes are given below: 
 

Table 4 – Property Funds (initial £1m) 
 

Property  
Fund 

Sum 
Invested 

 
£’000 

Fair Value 
31 March 

2018 
£’000 

Fair Value 
30 Sept 

2018 
£’000 

Income 
received 
2018/19 
£’000 

BlackRock  500 564 575 7 

Schroders  250 283 294 4 

Threadneedle  250 264 267 6 

TOTAL 1,000 1,111 1,136 17 

 
 
 

Page 35



5.2 Following approval of the amended Capital Strategy on 30 April 2018, 
and working with the Council’s Treasury advisors, officers undertook a 
process of due diligence and received presentations from the five 
selected managers in early July. 

 
5.3 Whilst there were some slight differences in the make-up of the funds 

(sector, geography, average lease tenure), it was concluded that, as 
the intention is for longer term holdings, in line with the Capital and 
Treasury Strategy risks would be best mitigated by placing roughly 
equal amounts in each of the five funds.  

 
5.4 At the end of the quarter, £15.489m had been purchased, as shown in 

Table 5. 
 

Table 5 – Property Funds (new holdings: as at 30 September 2018) 
 
Property  
Fund 

Settlement 
Date 

Capital 
Exp. 

 
£’000 

Fair Value 
at date of 
acq’n 
£’000 

Fair Value 
30 Sept 

2018 
£’000 

Cum. 
gain/(loss) 
at 30 Sept 

£’000 

BlackRock  28.09.18 4,000 4,000 4,026 26 

Schroders  03.09.18 4,000 4,020 4,055 55 

Threadneedle  31.08.18 2,989 2,901 2,907 (82) 

Threadneedle  28.09.18 500 483 484 (16) 

M&G  14.09.18 4,000 3,905 3,912 (88) 

TOTAL  15,489 15,309 15,384 (105) 

 
5.5 The difference between purchase price (Capital Expenditure) and fair 

value at the date of acquisition reflects premiums payable or discount 
received against the Funds’ ‘Net Asset Value’ price at the settlement 
date. 

 
5.6 A further £0.5m will be placed with Threadneedle Property Unit Trust 

on 31 October, thus increasing the Council’s total holding to £4m. The 
remaining £4m of the £20m approved in April will be placed in the AEW 
Core Property Fund when units become available (expected to be 
concluded by the date of this meeting). 
 

5.7 The Council expects to receive income of £22,000 in the form of 
distributions to 30 September from the recently purchased investments. 

 
6. Borrowing  
 
6.1 The amended Capital Strategy approved new borrowing of up to £20m 

to finance the purchase of capital Property Fund units, and the position 
to the end of September 2018 is shown below. 

  
6.2 During the period of due diligence running up to the acquisition of 

holdings in August and September, officers closely monitored long term 
PWLB rates, and as can be seen in the graph below, this coincided 
with a steady rise in the long term fixed rate.  

 

Page 36



 
 
6.3 Discussions with advisors have concluded that this is likely to be 

reversed to some degree in the coming months, and therefore the 
financing of the initial acquisitions has been undertaken using short 
term borrowing and existing resources. Temporary borrowing of 
£10.5m was undertaken in September 2018 (see Table 6 below), to 
part-finance the acquisition of the new property fund holdings, with the 
remainder coming from existing cash resources.   

 
6.4 Officers, liaising with advisors, will track the movement of long term 

rates over the coming months, and such borrowing will be undertaken 
when it is considered advantageous to do so, with the outcomes being 
reported to this Committee in the subsequent quarterly monitoring 
report. 

  
Table 6 – Borrowing at 30 September 2018 

 

Local Authority 
Amount  
£’000 

Duration Rate 

South Holland District 
Council 

2,000 1 Month – Repayable 
05/10/18 

1.00% 

Edinburgh City Council 4,000 2 Months – Repayable 
13/11/18 

0.83% 

Edinburgh City Council 4,500 2 Months – Repayable 
27/11/18 

0.83% 

Total 10,500   

 
6.5 Interest payable (including that for the existing long term £1m loan) at 

30 September was £59,100, against the year’s original budget of 
£111,250. Based on current projections, the total interest payable for 
2018/19 is estimated at £322,000 (this assumes that all £20m long 
term PWLB borrowing is undertaken by 31 December 2018).  

 

Page 37



6.6 The 50 year PWLB target (certainty) rate for new long term borrowing 
varied between 2.4% and 2.7% during the period of purchasing the 
property fund holdings – Table 7 below shows recent movements.  

 
Table 7 – PWLB rates 

 

 
 

6.7 The Council has not borrowed in advance of need during the quarter 
ended 30 September 2018.   

 
7.   Compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits 

 

7.1 It is a statutory duty for the Council to determine and keep under 
review the affordable borrowing limits. The Council’s approved 
Treasury and Prudential Indicators, are included in the approved 
TMSS.  

 
7.2 During the quarter ended 30 September 2018, the Council has 

operated within the treasury and prudential indicators set out in the 
Council’s Treasury Management Strategy Statement and in compliance 
with the Council's Treasury Management Practices.  The prudential 
and treasury Indicators are shown in Appendix A. 

 
8.   Other 

 

8.1 UK banks – ring fencing 
 

The largest UK banks, (those with more than £25bn of retail / Small 
and Medium-sized Enterprise (SME) deposits), are required, by UK 
law, to separate core retail banking services from their investment and 
international banking activities by 1 January 2019. This is known as 
“ring-fencing”. Whilst smaller banks with less than £25bn in deposits 
are exempt, they can choose to opt up. Several banks are very close to 
the threshold already and so may come into scope in the future 
regardless. 
 

Ring-fencing is a regulatory initiative created in response to the global 
financial crisis. It mandates the separation of retail and SME deposits 
from investment banking, in order to improve the resilience and 
resolvability of banks by changing their structure. In general, simpler, 
activities offered from within a ring-fenced bank (RFB), will be focused 
on lower risk, day-to-day core transactions, whilst more complex and 
“riskier” activities are required to be housed in a separate entity, a non-
ring-fenced bank (NRFB). This is intended to ensure that an entity’s 

Page 38



core activities are not adversely affected by the acts or omissions of 
other members of its group. 
 

While the structure of the banks included within this process may have 
changed, the fundamentals of credit assessment have not. The Council 
will continue to assess the new-formed entities in the same way that it 
does others and those with sufficiently high ratings (and any other 
metrics considered) will be considered for investment purposes. 

 
8.2  IFRS9 accounting standard  
 

This accounting standard came into effect from 1 April 2018.  It means 
that the category of investments valued under the available for sale 
category will be removed and any potential fluctuations in market 
valuations may impact onto the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services, rather than being held on the balance sheet.  This change is 
unlikely to materially affect the commonly used types of treasury 
management investments but more specialist types of investments 
(e.g. Property Funds) are likely to be impacted.   
 
English local authorities 
The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government 
(MHCLG) is currently conducting a consultation for a temporary 
override to allow English local authorities time to adjust their portfolio of 
investments. Members will be updated when the result of this 
consultation is known.  

 
8.3  Changes in risk appetite 

 
The 2018 CIPFA Codes and guidance notes have placed enhanced 
importance on risk management.  Where an authority changes its risk 
appetite e.g. for moving surplus cash into or out of certain types of 
investment funds or other types of investment instruments, this change 
in risk appetite and policy should be brought to members’ attention in 
treasury management update reports. The Capital Strategy report in 
April 2018 included commentary on risks and mitigations.  

  

Review Date: 
 
Regular reporting is undertaken in the quarterly Governance Reports, and 
Annual Treasury Management Reports are produced each year. Any 
significant treasury issues arising will be reported to the Audit and 
Governance Committee. 
 

 
CONCLUSION 
 
Treasury Management continues to require close attention given the current 
financial climate. Officers will continue to be vigilant and report any significant 
issues to this Committee. 
 
 

Page 39



FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The entire report 
 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The General Power of Competence (GPOC) in the Localism Act 2011 allows 
Councils a broad freedom in their operations.  
 
Councils have the general power to borrow under Section 1 of the Local 
Government Act 2003.  
 
The power to invest is set out in the Local Government Act 2003, Section 12, 
which gives the Council the power to invest for any purpose relevant to its 
functions under any enactment, or for the purposes of the prudent 
management of its financial affairs.  
 
The power that allows councils to spend for capital purposes is included in the 
Local Government Act 2003.  
 

 

ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
Risk Management 
The Code of Practice sets out the framework for controlling the risks 
associated with treasury management decisions for borrowing and investing.  
Ultimately investment and borrowing decisions are made in accordance with 
the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy. The overriding priority is that 
the security of a deposit takes precedence over a return on investment. 
 

The Prudential and Treasury Indicators control the limits for investing and 
borrowing, to ensure that any borrowing is affordable and sustainable and 
long term borrowing is for capital purposes only. 
 
Impact on Performance 
There is a requirement to try and balance the risks and rewards from investing 
our available cash resources, as outlined within the Treasury Management 
Strategy 2018/19. 
 

 
CONSULTATION 
 
No consultation undertaken.   
 

APPENDICES 
 
Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A Prudential and Treasury Indicators 

 
 

Page 40



BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 
 

Treasury Management Policy 
and Strategy and Annual 
Investment Strategy for 2018/19 

As part of the MTFS on the Council 
Website; and updated 30 April 2018. 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 

A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body.   

 
 

Page 41



Appendix A 
 

Prudential and Treasury Indicators  
 

PRUDENTIAL/TREASURY  
INDICATOR 

2018/19 2018/19 Notes 

 Original 
Estimate 

 

  Projected   
Outturn  

 

 

 £’000   £’000  
 

Capital Expenditure  25,847 24,429  

    

Capital Financing Requirement 
as at 31 March 

20,459 20,459  

    

Annual Change in Capital 
Financing Requirement 

 
20,000 

 
20,000 

 

    

In year Borrowing Requirement 20,000 20,000  

    

Ratio of financing costs to net 
revenue stream 

 
% 

 
% 

 

General Fund (1.14) (1.14)  
 

Authorised Limit for external 
debt  
Borrowing and other Long term 
liabilities 
 

           
 
 

25,000 

 
 
 

25,000 

 
 
 

Operational Boundary for 
external debt -  

   

 Borrowing          22,000      22,000  
    
Gross External Debt       (21,000)       (21,000)  
    

Investments 11,239 11,239  

    

Net Borrowing (9,761) (9,761)  

 
 

Page 42



 

 

  
For all your assurance needs 

 

 
Boston Borough Council   
 
Progress Report – November 2018   
 
                      
 

 

                                                               

Page 43

Agenda Item 4



 
Contents            Para  

 
 

Introduction          1    
 

Key Messages                   1 
 

Internal Audit work completed September – October   1 
 

Other Significant Work        3 
 

Audits in Progress         3 
 

Audit Recommendations        3  
 

Performance Information        4 
 

Other matters of interest        4 
 

Appendices 
Appendix 1  – Details of Limited or Low Assurance Reports    6 
Appendix 2 – Internal Audit Plan & Schedule 2018/19   7 
Appendix 3  – Assurance Definitions      9  
Appendix 4  – Performance Details      10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contact Details: 
John Scott 
Audit Manager 

 

 
For all your assurance needs 
City Hall, Beaumont Fee, Lincoln, LN1 1DD  
:  01522 873321    john.scott@lincoln.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Page 44

mailto:john.scott@lincoln.gov.uk


 
Introduction   
 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to: 
 

 Advise of progress made with the Audit Plan  

 Provide details of the audit work undertaken since the last progress report.   

 Provide details of the current position with agreed management actions in 
respect of previously issued reports  

 Raise any other matters that may be relevant to the Audit & Governance 
Committee role  

 

 
Key Messages   
 
 

2. The 2018/19 audit plan is progressing well and is on track. At the end of September 
39% of the Plan has been completed compared to the target of 37% (the majority of the 
work is being done in the second half of the year at management’s request); three 
audits have been completed and five are in progress. 

 

  
Internal Audit work completed September – October 2018   
 
 

3. The following final reports have been issued since the last progress report;  
 

High Assurance Substantial 
Assurance 

Limited 
Assurance 

Low 
Assurance 
 

Consultancy 

Environmental 
Enforcement 

None None None  

 
Note: The Audit & Governance Committee should note that the assurance expressed is 
at the time of issue of the report but before the full implementation of the agreed 
management action plan. Definitions levels are shown in Appendix 4.   
 
Below are summaries of the audit reports issued; 
 
 
 
 

Page 45



Environmental Enforcement – High Assurance 
 
Environmental Enforcement helps to deliver against the key aim of Cleanliness within 
the Council’s Corporate Priority no 3 - Place. The Environmental Enforcement areas 
covered by this review were; 

 The enforcement service provided by 3GS, which started in April 2017 

 The prosecution service provided by Stephensons Solicitors LLP, which started 
in April 2018 

 Operation Flyswat, an arrangement with a number of local partners to combat fly 
tipping, which has been operating since late 2011 

 
The key risks are; 

 The arrangements do not deliver effective enforcement action 

 The Council’s environmental objectives are not achieved 

 Adverse impact on the Council’s reputation 
 
The risks were reviewed by examining the way in which these arrangements are 
operated; 

 Delivery 

 Responsibilities 

 Management 

 Performance 

 Governance 
 
Our review gives us High assurance that controls are in place, and operating as 
expected, to deliver effective environmental enforcement activities.  
 
The Council has found innovative ways of providing these services at a low or nil cost, 
using service level and retainer agreements with its partners. 
 
We found that; 

 Appropriate, signed, agreements are in place with all partners 

 The 3GS agreement recognises Data Protection and GDPR requirements, 
however the Flyswat agreement only refers to DP and needs to be reviewed to 
reflect the GDPR requirements introduced in May 2018. 

 All agreements comprehensively cover the responsibilities of each party and the 
expectations on them. 

 Effective management arrangements are in place, through the Environment 
Supervisor at an operation level and the Operations Manager. There is daily 
contact with 3GS staff and good access to management but there are no formal, 
periodic, review meetings. The Flyswat partners aim to meet every 2 months but 
this has proven difficult so far during 2018, although a meeting has recently taken 
place in September 

 There is a performance indicator for fly tipping (collect 84% within 2 working 
days) which is monitored through the Council’s established performance 
management framework. This target was achieved during 2017/18 and is being 
maintained in 2018/19 

 The 3GS agreement does not contain any performance targets / measures as it 
is critical that enforcement action is only undertaken where it is appropriate. 
Management and Members are happy with the service being delivered and the 

Page 46



planned consultation survey with the public in early 2019 will give some insight 
on their views. 

 The 3GS / Stephensons arrangements are at nil cost to the Council and the 
finances of the Flyswat arrangement are being appropriately managed 

 The Council doesn’t have a formal partnership governance framework but there 
are a number of things that should be in place and all were being done 

 The arrangements are structured in such a way that any unforeseen events are 
not the responsibility of BBC to make contingencies plans for 

 The achievements of these arrangements are widely publicised to promote the 
services and act as a deterrent.  

 There have been no formal complaints made about the 3GS or Flyswat services.   
 

 
Other Significant Work  
 

 
4. There is nothing to report. 

 
 

Audits in Progress  
 

 
5. The following audits are in progress; 

 

 Key Controls (Housing Benefits, Council Tax & NNDR) – in progress 

 Town Centre Events – in progress 

 Affordable Housing – in progress 

 IT Infrastructure & Disaster Recovery follow up – in progress 

 Business Continuity & Emergency Planning – in progress 
 

 
Audit Recommendations  
 

 
6. There is a formal process for tracking Internal Audit recommendations; they are 

recorded on the Council’s performance management system, Performance Plus, and 
progress updates are input by management each quarter. We periodically liaise with the 
Transformation & Governance Manager to obtain status reports. 
 
Internal Audit undertake formal follow up on all High priority recommendations and all 
recommendations made in audits where the overall assurance is Limited or Low; 
evidence of implementation will be requested and examined. 
 
An update on recommendations was provided to the September meeting and the next 
one will be provided at the January meeting.  
 

 
  

Page 47



Performance Information  
 
 
7. Our performance is measured against a range of indicators, and is shown at Appendix 4.  
 
 

Other matters of interest 
 
 
8. Audit Committee 
 

CIPFA has published an updated Position Statement setting out the principles that it 
recommends for audit committees in the local government sector. The statement covers 
the role and purpose of the committee, its key areas of focus and the membership of the 
committee. There is further support for the committee in the CIPFA publication Audit 
Committees: Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police (2018 Edition). 
 
The aim is to review and update audit and governance terms of reference (if required) 
by March 2019 
 
 
Fraud 
 
The CIPFA Fraud and Corruption Tracker (CFaCT) report revealed an overall increase 
in the number of frauds detected or prevented 
 
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) has found that 
fraud continues to pose a major financial threat to local authorities, with £302m detected 
or prevented by councils in 2017/18. 
 
While this was £34m less than last year’s total, the CIPFA Fraud and Corruption 
Tracker (CFaCT) report revealed an overall increase in the number of frauds detected 
or prevented – up to 80,000, from the 75,000 cases found in 2016/17. 
 
Among these cases there are reminders of some of the challenges being faced by local 
authorities, with the number of serious or organised crime cases doubling to 56, and a 
significant increase in the amount lost to business rates fraud, which jumped to £10.4m 
in 2017/18 from £4.3m in 2016/17. 
 
While CIPFA commends the efforts of counter fraud teams and local authorities, with 
multiple reports suggesting fraud costs local government anywhere from £2.1bn to £7bn 
every year, there clearly is more work to be done in this area. 
 
 
National Fraud Initiative 
 
The National Fraud Initiative is a mandatory data matching exercise operating across 
local government. In England the Cabinet Office leads the exercise and each of the 
devolved governments run their own exercise, led by the appropriate audit institution. 
 

Page 48



Consultation on CIPFA index of resilience for English councils 
 
CIPFA has recently consulted on the development of an index of resilience for English 
Councils. The proposal is in response to concerns around financial sustainability raised 
by the sector and the recent National Audit Office report. Using publicly available 
information the index would provide an assessment of the relative financial health of 
each English council. CIPFA is currently considering the responses received. CIPFA 
Consultation. 
 
 
Monitoring the quality of external audit 
 
Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) publish quarterly compliance monitoring 
reports on the external audit contracts they oversee. The annual report summarises 
these results together with audit quality review findings. Audit committee members 
should be aware of any audit quality or compliance issues relating to their appointed 
external audit firm.  
 
The combined regulatory compliance and audit quality performance scores (Principal 
Audits) 2018; 
 

Firm     Score 
 

BDO / EY / GT / KPMG Amber 
Mazars    Green 

 

 
Quality Assurance 
 
The quality assurance framework is designed to ensure quality outcomes. The audit 
process is designed to deliver a consistently high quality audit service to our clients – 
one that is fit for purpose / meets client expectations and conforms to public sector 
internal audit standards. The quality improvement plan below provides details of 
planned, completed and ongoing improvements to strengthen our arrangements. Any 
significant non-conformance would be included in the Internal Audit Annual Report. 
 
Ongoing monitoring for quality is built into the audit process. Checks and oversight are 
undertaken throughout the audit engagement ensuring that processes and practice are 
consistently applied and working well. This provides on-going assurance that that 
engagement planning, fieldwork conduct and reporting / communicating results adheres 
to audit practice standards 
 
We review and update the Quality Assurance Improvement Programme (QAIP) action 
plan regularly and focus on evaluating conformance with Internal Audit Charter, 
definition of Internal Audit, Code of Ethics & the Standards. We arrange an external 
quality assessment periodically – co-ordinated with Audit / Audit and Governance 
Committee (last completed 2016) 
 
We undertake periodic quality assurance assessments covering engagement planning, 
fieldwork, conduct and reporting / communicating results, ensuring we adhere to audit 
practice standards. 

Page 49



Quality Assurance Improvement Programme (Action plan)   
                 

Opportunities for Improvement Date Status Resp 

 
1. Complete ethical / values audit review – ColC Dec 18 In progress AM 

2. Complete ethical / values audit review – BBC Mar 19  Scheduled AM 

3. Complete governance review BBC/COLC Mar 18 Complete – 
(Annual) 

AM 

4. PSIAS – communicate standards/regular practice 
discussions with staff 

Mar 19 Ongoing AM/AL 

5. PSIAS – Update Internal Audit Charter, once CIPFA 
application note published (Will cover BBC/ColC) 

Mar 19 Scheduled AM/AL 

6. Improve in-year reporting to CMT (BBC/ColC) Mar 18 Complete AM 

7. Review practice notes/processes Mar 19 Ongoing AM/AL 

8.   Dynamic audit planning  - practice note Dec 18 In progress AM/AL 

9.   Audit planning – update risk scores using new 
methodology BBC/COlC 

Dec 18 Scheduled AM 

10.  Dynamic audit planning  - consider approach 
19/20, BBC/COLC 

Feb 19 Scheduled AM/AL 

11.  Improve cross partnership working Mar 19 Ongoing AM/AL 

12.  Improve monitoring of audit recommendations 
(ColC) 

Mar 19 Ongoing AM 

13.  External Audit (Mazars) –consider IA/EA protocol Mar 19 To be 
discussed 

AM/AL 

14.  Review and report on assurances linked to 
Northamptonshire (governance) report ColC 

Dec 18 In progress AM/AL 

15.  Review and report on assurances linked to 
Northamptonshire report BBC 

Feb 19 Starting AM/AL 

16.  Review audit software process steps Sept 18 Completed AM/AL 

17.  Review security of data transfer BBC/ColC Sept 18 Completed AM/AL 

18.  Review IA/AC effectiveness (using new CIPFA 
guidance) ColC 

Dec 18 Scheduled AM/AL 

19.  Review IA/AC effectiveness (using new CIPFA 
guidance) BBC 

Mar 19 Scheduled AM/AL 

20.  Review AC terms of reference (new CIPFA 
guidance) ColC 

Sept 18 Completed AM/AL 

21.  Review AC terms of reference (new CIPFA 
guidance) BBC 

Sept 18 Initial 
assessment 
completed 

AM/AL 

22.  Review (specialist) IT audit provision 19/20 
onwards 

Mar 19 In progress AM/AL 

23. CPD/training and development 
Assurance Lincs/CIPFA/Audit groups/other 

Mar 19 Ongoing AM/AL 

23. GDPR – review agreements for contract compliance Mar 19 Ongoing  AM/ 
BBC 

24. Consider (short) summary report for management 
 

Mar 19 Commenced AM/AL 

 
AM – Audit Manager 
AL – Assurance Lincolnshire 
BBC – Boston Borough Council 

  

Page 50



Appendix 1 – Details of Low or Limited Assurance Reports  
 
 
There are none. 
 

  

Page 51



 
  

Appendix 2 – 2018/19 Audit Plan Schedule 
 
Area  
 

Indicative Scope Planned 
Start 
Date 

Actual 
Start  
Date 

Final 
Report 
Issued 

Current 
Status / 
Assurance 
Opinion 

Annual Report Production of 2017/18 
Annual Report 

Q1 April 18 May 18 Complete 
A&G May 18 

Elections & Electoral 
Registration 

Maintaining the electoral 
register and the 
operation of elections. 

Q1 April 18 June 18 Completed – 
High 
assurance 

Payroll  Key controls Q1 May 18 July 18 Completed – 
High 
assurance 

Environmental 
Enforcement 

Operation of the 
partnerships. 

Q2 Aug 18 Oct 18 Completed – 
High 
assurance 

Car Parking (NEW) Income controls and 
VFM opportunities 

Q2 Jul 18  In progress 
Draft report 

Housing Growth & 
Affordable Housing 

Work to increase the 
supply and range of 
affordable and flexible 
housing products. 

Q2-3 Oct 18  In progress 

Council Tax  Key controls Q2-3 Sept 18 
 

 Report being 
agreed Housing Benefit  Key controls Q2-3 

NNDR  Key controls Q2-3 

Town Centre Events put on to 
promote the town 
centre. 

Q2-3 Oct 18  In progress 

Business Continuity & 
Emergency Planning 

The Council’s resilience 
plans in the event of loss 
of key buildings and / or 
ICT. 

Q3 Oct 18  In progress 

ICT  Infrastructure & DR 
follow up 

Q3 Nov 18  In progress 
 

Migration Fund  Processes to deliver and 
record key output 
measures. 

Q3    

Economic 
Development 

Work being done to 
grow the economy. 

Q3    

Combined Assurance Production of 2018/19 
Assurance Map & report 

Q3-4    

Ethical Culture Assessment of the 
Council’s (officer) ethical 
framework 

Q4    

ICT  Digitalisation strategy & 
use of new websites 

Q4    

Page 52



Area  
 

Indicative Scope Planned 
Start 
Date 

Actual 
Start  
Date 

Final 
Report 
Issued 

Current 
Status / 
Assurance 
Opinion 

Governance-Risk-
Fraud 

High level assessment 
for the annual audit 
opinion 

Q4    

IA Strategy & new 
Audit Plan 

Production of 2019/20 
audit plan 

Q4    

Boston Town Area 
Committee 

Governance and 
operational 
arrangements. 

   Moved to 
2019/20 

Page 53



Appendix 3 - Assurance Definitions
1
 

 
High Assurance 
 
 

 
Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a high level of 
confidence on service delivery arrangements, management of risks, and the 
operation of controls and / or performance.   
 
The risk of the activity not achieving its objectives or outcomes is low.  Controls 
have been evaluated as adequate, appropriate and are operating effectively. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Substantial 
Assurance 
 
 

 
Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a substantial level of 
confidence (assurance) on service delivery arrangements, management of risks, 
and operation of controls and / or performance. 
 
There are some improvements needed in the application of controls to manage 
risks. However, the controls have been evaluated as adequate, appropriate and 
operating sufficiently so that the risk of the activity not achieving its objectives is 
medium to low.   
 
 
 
  

 
Limited Assurance  
 

 
Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a limited level of 
confidence on service delivery arrangements, management of risks, and operation 
of controls and / or performance. 
 
The controls to manage the key risks were found not always to be operating or are 
inadequate. Therefore, the controls evaluated are unlikely to give a reasonable 
level of confidence (assurance) that the risks are being managed effectively.  It is 
unlikely that the activity will achieve its objectives. 
 

Low Assurance 
 

 
Our critical review or assessment on the activity identified significant concerns on 
service delivery arrangements, management of risks, and operation of controls 
and / or performance. 
 
There are either gaps in the control framework managing the key risks or the 
controls have been evaluated as not adequate, appropriate or are not being 
effectively operated. Therefore the risk of the activity not achieving its objectives is 
high. 
 

 
 
 
 

                                                 
1
 These definitions are used as a means of measuring or judging the results and impact of matters identified in the 

audit. The assurance opinion is based on information and evidence which came to our attention during the audit.  
Our work cannot provide absolute assurance that material errors, loss or fraud do not exist.  

Page 54



Appendix 4 - Performance Details 2018/19 Planned Work 

 

 
 

Performance Indicator Annual 
Target 

Profiled 
Target 

Actual  
 

Percentage of plan 
completed. 

100%  
 

16% end June 
37% end Sept 
83% end Dec 
100% end Mar 
 

39% at end of September 

Percentage of key financial 
systems completed. 
 

100%  100% 0%  
(The three key control audits 
in the Plan are almost 
complete) 
 

Percentage of 
recommendations agreed. 
 

100%  100% 100%  
(4 out of 4) 

Percentage of 
recommendations due 
implemented. 
 

100% or 
escalated  
 

100% or 
escalated  
 

A figure will be reported in 
next Progress Report in 
January. 

Timescales: 
Draft report issued within 10 
working days of completing 
audit.  
 
Final report issued within 5 
working days of closure 
meeting / receipt of 
management responses. 
 
Period taken to complete 
audit –within 2 months from 
fieldwork commencing to the 
issue of the draft report. 
 

  
100% 
 
 
 
100% 
 
 
 
 
80% 

 
100% 
 
 
 
100% 
 
 
 
 
80% 

 
100%  
(3 out of 3) 
 
 
100%  
(3 out of 3) 
 
 
 
100%  
(3 out of 3) 
 

Client Feedback on Audit 
(average) 
 

Good to 
excellent 

Good to 
excellent 

Good to excellent  
(3 issued & 2 returned) 

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2018-19 
 

MEETING  
 

ITEMS 

30 MAY 2018  Annual Audit Fee – External Auditor 

 Annual Fraud Performance Report 2017/18 – Kelly Clarke 

 Quarter 4 2017/18 Risk Report  – Suzanne Rolfe  

 Pre-Audit Financial Report 2017/18 – Paul Julian  

 Annual Treasury Management Report 2017/18 – Paul Julian  

 Internal Audit Annual Report 2017/18 – John Scott  

 Internal Audit – Progress Report 2018/19 – John Scott 

23 JULY 2018  Report to those charged with governance (ISA 260) 2017/18 –           
John Cornett, KPMG 

 Financial Report 2017/18 – Paul Julian  

 Treasury Management Update – Quarter 1 2018/19 – Paul Julian 

 Internal Audit – Progress Report 2018/19 – John Scott 

17 SEPT 2018  Introduction to representatives from Mazars 

 Quarter 1 Risk Report  – Suzanne Rolfe  

 Property Fund Update – Colin Wyatt 

 Internal Audit – Progress Report 2018/19 – John Scott 

12 NOV 2018  Annual Audit Letter 2017/18  – John Cornett 

 Quarter 2 Risk Report – Suzanne Rolfe  

 Treasury Management and Capital Strategy Update – Quarter 2 
2018/19 – Paul Julian  

 Internal Audit Progress Report 2018/19 – John Scott 
 

28 JAN 2019  Certification of Grants and Returns – Annual Report 2017/18 –  
John Cornett, KPMG 

 Draft Budget Setting Report and Medium Term Financial Strategy 
2019/20 – 2023/24 – Paul Julian  

 Treasury Management Update – Quarter 3 2018/19 – Paul Julian  

 Internal Audit Progress Report 2018/19 – John Scott 

 Draft Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 – John Scott 
 

25 MAR 2019  Technical Update, Incorporating the External Audit Progress Report – 
Mazars 

 External Audit Plan 2018/19 – Mazars 

 Quarter 3 Risk Report 2018/19 – Suzanne Rolfe 

 Annual Governance Statement 2018/19 – Paul Julian 

 Accounting Policies – Paul Julian 

 Combined Assurance – Status Report – John Scott 

 Internal Audit Progress Report 2018/19 – John Scott 

 Internal Audit Plan  2019/20 – John Scott 
 

 
 

 
 

 

To be scheduled: CIPFA Guidance to Audit Committees – John Scott 
 

Page 57

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	A MINUTES
	1 ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 2017/18
	Annual Audit Letter 2017/18
	Summary for Audit & Governance Committee
	Summary for Audit & Governance Committee
	Summary for Audit & Governance Committee (cont.)
	Summary for Audit & Governance Committee (cont.)
	Appendices
	Summary of reports issued
	Audit fees
	Slide Number 9

	2 QUARTER 2 RISK REPORT
	Appendix A - Details of Strategic Risks

	3 TREASURY MANAGEMENT AND CAPITAL STRATEGY UPDATE - QUARTER 2 2018/19
	4 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT - NOVEMBER 2018
	5 WORK PROGRAMME



